
T O W N  O F  B E L G R A D E  

Meeting Agenda 
BOARD OF SELECTPERSONS 

MAY 2, 2023 / 6:30 P.M. 
BELGRADE TOWN OFFICE 

 

This meeting will be conducted in person. The public may also view the meeting and participate online 
at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984 

 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Establish quorum. 

Public Hearing – June referendum warrant articles 

Open Meeting 

1. Public Comment 
2. Review and approve minutes of April 18, 2023 and April 27, 2023 
3. Presentation and Discussion – Perkins Leasing 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Policy Updates 
B. Comprehensive Plan 

 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appointments, Resignations 
B. Acceptable Use Agreement 
C. Lakes Committee request / letter 
D. Fuel Bids 
E. 4th of July Holiday/Meeting date 

 
6. OTHER BUSINESS 

7. WARRANTS  

8. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6) – personnel matter, if needed. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984
















 

Page 1 of 6 
 

T O W N  O F  B E L G R A D E  

Meeting Minutes 
BOARD OF SELECTPERSONS 

APRIL 18, 2023 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person. The public may also view the meeting and participate online 
at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984 

Present: Chair Barbara Allen, Vice Chair Carol Johnson, Selectperson Daniel Newman, Selectperson Melanie 
Jewell, Selectperson Peter Rushton, Town Manager Lorna Dee Nichols, George Seel, Liz Fontaine, Sara 
Languet, Diane Oliver, Lynn Matson, Bruce Galouch, Anthony Wilson, Cory Alexander, Tom Streznewski, John 
Hall, Kathy Atkinson, Phyllis Matson, Eric Hooglund, Charlie Baeder, Stuart Cole. 

Remote Participants: Travis Burton, Mary Vogel, Lynn Geiger. 

Call to Order at 6:31 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen. 

Chair Barbara Allen motioned to move into executive session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(c) 
Real Estate; economic development; Selectperson Daniel Newman seconded the motion, vote 5-
0. 
 
Selectperson Daniel Newman motioned to exit executive session at 7 p.m., Vice Chair Carol 
Johnson seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
No decision or motion was made. 
 
Selectperson Melanie Jewell motioned to enter regular session at 7:01 p.m., Selectperson Daniel 
Newman seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Establish quorum. 

Open Meeting  

Public Comment:  

Sara Languet reminds the public of the May 18 voting on the RSU 18 budget – 6 p.m. at the high 
school. 

The bridge is open on Castle Island! 

Appointments - none 

OLD BUSINESS 
Review and approve minutes of April 4, 2023 
 

Vice Chair Carol Johnson motioned to approve the minutes of April 4, 2023 as written, 
Selectperson Peter Rushton seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 

 
American Rescue Plan Funds (ARPA) 
 

Vice Chair Carol Johnson motioned to approve expending up to $30,000 from American Rescue 
Funds for 7 Lakes Alliance erosion control, Selectperson Peter Rushton seconded the motion, 
vote 5-0. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Planning Board Ordinance – finalize and set hearing date. 
 

Vice Chair Carol Johnson motioned to approve the Planning Board Ordinance as presented for 
voting in June and to set the public hearing date as May 2, Selectperson Daniel Newman 
seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 

 
Sexton, Cleaning position job descriptions – finalize to post positions. 

Vice Chair Carol Johnson motioned to approve the Custodial Maintenance job description as 
amended, Selectperson Peter Rushton seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 

 
Chair Barbara Allen motion to approve the Assistant Sexton job description as amended, Vice 
Chair Carol Johnson seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 

 
Warrant articles for June (cemeteries request, PB ordinance, multi-year contracts), approve and sign warrant; 
set public hearing date 
 

Cemeteries warrant article: Vice Chair Carol Johnson motioned to approve, Selectperson Peter 
Rushton seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Multi-year contracts: Selectperson Daniel Newman motioned to reconsider the April 4 warrant 
article, Chair Barbara Allen seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Chair Barbara Allen motioned to use new warrant article language, Vice Chair Carol Johnson 
seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Planning Board Ordinance: Chair Barbara Allen motion to approve and add to warrant for June 
voting, Vice Chair Carol Johnson seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson motioned to put all warrant articles on for a public hearing May 2, 
Chair Barbara Allen seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 

 
Merit increases for retention increase employees. 

Chair Barbara Allen motioned to approve merit increases for retention increase employees 
retroactive to April 1, Vice Chair Carol Johnson seconded the motion, vote 3-2. 
 

Winter Maintenance RFP 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson motioned to approve the RFP for Winter Maintenance as amended, 
Selectperson Peter Rushton seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
Tax Anticipation Note (TAN) bids 

The town received three bids: Bangor Savings Bank at 4.99%, Camden National Bank at 5.70% and 
Androscoggin Bank at 5.44%. 
 
Chair Barbara Allen motioned: 
 
VOTED by the Select Board for the Town of Belgrade, Maine as follows: 
 
VOTED: (1) That under and pursuant to Title 30-A, Section 5771 of the Maine Revised 
Statutes, as amended and supplemented, there be and hereby is authorized the issuance of 
$2,000,000 principal amount of Tax Anticipation Note of the Town in anticipation of the receipt 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

of taxes for the municipal fiscal year which commenced January 1, 2023 and ends December 31, 
2023. 
 
 (2) Said Note shall be dated May 2, 2023, shall mature on December 15, 2023, shall be 
signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the Chair of the Select Board, shall bear interest 
at the rate of 4.99% per annum, shall be payable at Bangor Savings Bank in Bangor, Maine, and 
otherwise be in such form and bear such details as the signers may determine. 
 
 (3) That said Note is hereby sold and awarded to Bangor Savings Bank. 
 
 (4) Said Note is hereby designated a qualified tax-exempt obligation of the Town for 
the 2023 calendar year pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 
 
 (5) That all things heretofore done and all action heretofore taken by the Town, its 
municipal officers and agents in the authorization of said Note are hereby ratified, approved and 
confirmed and the Treasurer and Chair are each hereby authorized to take any and all action 
necessary or convenient to carry out the provisions of this voting, including delivering said 
Note against payment therefor. 
 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 

 
Rome Local Plumbing Inspector (LPI) coverage  
 

The Board would like a memorandum of understanding between the Town of Belgrade and Rome for 
reciprocal coverage. The Town Manager will work with the Code Enforcement Officer to have 
something for review and consideration at a future meeting. 

 
Fire Department vaccine policy 

Chair Barbara Allen motioned to approve the Belgrade Fire & Rescue Department vaccine policy 
as presented, Vice Chair Carol Johnson seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 

Friends of the Library - building lease renewal 
Selectperson Melanie Jewell motioned to approve the annual library lease, Selectperson Peter 
Rushton seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

Town Manager review. The Board will schedule a 1-hour executive session as part of their May 2 
meeting and a 1-hour executive session as part of their May 16 meeting with the Town Manager. 

 
WARRANTS   

Warrant 42 $24,973.11 
Chair Barbara Allen motioned to approve warrant 42 in the amount of $24,973.11, Vice Chair 
Carol Johnson seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Warrant 43 $8,694.25 
Chair Barbara Allen motioned to approve warrant 43 in the amount of $8,694.25, Selectperson 
Daniel Newman seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Warrant 44 $118,155.32 
Chair Barbara Allen motioned to approve warrant 44 in the amount of $118,155.32, Vice Chair 
Carol Johnson seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Warrant 45 $18,532.49 



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Chair Barbara Allen motioned to approve warrant 45 in the amount of $18,532.49, Selectperson 
Melanie Jewell seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Warrant 46 $8,574.31 
Chair Barbara Allen motioned to approve warrant 46 in the amount of $8,574.31, Vice Chair 
Carol Johnson seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 

 
 
TOWN MANAGER REPORT 
 
Comprehensive Plan, Digital Mapping 

Joel from KVCOG has been on vacation. I have spoken with Executive Director Matt Underwood, who 
will speak with Joel once he has returned to determine what map services can be provided.  

CAI offers parcel data and integration of property tax cards, photos and sketches of each property. It is 
unknown at this time if KVCOG can offer the same service. 

Right now, we know that updating our comprehensive plan with basic map updates will run $28,000 +/- 
with KVCOG. Additional map services will incur additional costs. 

CAI can digitize maps and integrate the additional items as listed above for $29,000 +/-. We are also 
exploring integration of permits through iWorq with CAI and the cost to do so. 

In addition, the company we utilize for our website (CivicPlus) also offers modules for permitting which 
may be a better fit for Belgrade. Both Hans and I will be exploring this to see if this is something I 
should bring to the Board for consideration at a future meeting. 

Center for All Seasons 

Recreation Director Dan MacGlashing will be away the first week of May, the center will open at 9 a.m. 
instead of 8 while he is away – staff has been scheduled to ensure coverage, there will be no disruption 
of programming or services. Notices will be posted the week prior. 

Cemetery Committee 

Would like to request the Board consider a warrant article for the June ballot to move $10,000 from 
undesignated funds to the reserve account. The Plan 5 Capital Projects account currently has a 
balance of $6,329.86. This has been added to your agenda. 

Acceptable Use Policy 

To keep our cybersecurity coverage through MMA, I’ve been working on an Acceptable Use policy 
which will need to be in place by June. Nick and I have reviewed a first draft, and this will be presented 
to the Selectboard for consideration at a future meeting. 

Warrant Articles, Public Hearing 

With the upcoming school budget vote in June, I worked on final warrant articles this week for the 
Board’s consideration April 18. These need to be finalized so that a public hearing can be scheduled to 
be in compliance with Maine statutes. Mary worked on the final warrant and ballot, and we should have 
that wrapped up in the next week or so. On the ballot (with Board approval) will be the re-establishment 
of the Planning Board Ordinance, a request to appropriate $10,000 from undesignated funds for the 



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Cemetery Reserve account (for Plan 5); warrant article(s) to allow the Town to enter into multi-year 
contracts. 

Easter 

An employee asked about Easter as a paid holiday. Unfortunately, this is not included in the list of 
eleven paid holidays in our employee handbook. Checking with the State and other municipalities, this 
is not a recognized paid holiday. 

The Town currently recognizes New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Day, President’s Day, Patriot’s 
Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veteran’s Day, Thanksgiving 
(including the Friday following Thanksgiving) and Christmas as paid holidays. 

Safety Training 

Cory, Dan MacGlashing and I met with Lynn Martin to go over safety training. The Transfer Station will 
be applying for the SHAPE program, as well as Fire & Rescue. This is significant and shows the 
commitment of these departments to health and safety. Our goal is to have every department work 
toward and obtain this designation. 

Public Works Ad Hoc 

The Public Works Ad Hoc committee met Thursday morning to continue exploration and planning for 
either a contractor or contractors to pick up winter maintenance of our roads; or what a timeline and 
costs would be associated with creating a public works department. The committee is looking to put the 
RFP out again, open ended until a contractor is secured. This request is included for April 18. 

Site Visits 

Cory, Chair Barbara Allen, and I did site visits of some of our facilities to get a better understanding of 
repairs and maintenance needed to put these into tip-top shape. The visits were interesting and very 
enlightening. 

We were able to visit several parks, the Village Fire Station, Dalton properties, Center for All Seasons 
and the Transfer Station. We will schedule another day to visit the remaining facilities. 

ACO 

I worked with our ACO on a couple of dogs at large cases, and we’ve gotten some identifying clothing 
ordered for him as he continues in his duties. 

HR/Policies 

I attended HR training last week and came away with a list of policies to cross-check with what we have 
in place currently. As I identify missing items, I will be bringing these policies to the Selectboard for their 
consideration. Having said that, the employee guidelines handbook needs some updating as pointed 
out by an employee recently. This will be a work in progress. 

I believe we have a final policy to address vaccination requirements from Maine EMS for Fire & 
Rescue. I wrote a policy and sent that over to Dan and his crew for review. Once they made their edits, 



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

I sent out for legal review and then back to Fire & Rescue for any final edits. I believe we have a final 
draft as an agenda item for your consideration. 

Safety Grant 

Signed off on a safety grant for Fire & Rescue through MMA – I appreciate the initiative Travis has put 
into applying for grant funds to help offset costs of much needed equipment. 

Brown Tail Moths 

Met with a resident about brown tail moths and what resources might be available to help mitigate 
these. I have been monitoring the State’s new program which would allow us to apply for grant funds to 
help remove these from town properties – they are still working on the final rulemaking, so the program 
has not been launched yet. An interesting PSA on these – moths are drawn to lights during nighttime 
hours. To help keep them away, try turning off outside lights at night or putting them on a motion 
sensor. Belgrade seems to be a high population area for them. 

Annual Evaluations 

I have been working this week on annual evaluations and will be scheduling a one-on-one with 
department heads before the end of the month.  

North Belgrade Fire Station Dedication 

I am awaiting confirmation and final details on the dedication of the N. Belgrade fire station, tentatively 
scheduled for May 6. 

Memorial Bench 

The bench for Mr. Beck has been received, along with the personalized plaque. Native Notions will be 
installing the bench in Peninsula Park by the end of the month. 

On the radar 

Water Trustee appointments (2 positions open) 

Dalton rental agreement(s) – meet with Perkins Leasing 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation Oversight Committee 

GIS mapping (digitized maps and parcel data) 

LD 2003 

Possible Broadband Committee 

Volunteer Flower Group (volunteers to plant and care for flowers around town) 

Strategic Planning/Goals for 2023 

Fuel bids (RSU 18 etc.) – May 2 

Lakes Committee request – May 2 

 
Vice Chair Carol Johnson motioned to adjourn the meeting at 10:45 p.m., Chair Barbara Allen 
seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
































































































































































































	Binder3.pdf
	May 2 Draft Agenda
	Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
	Public Hearing – June referendum warrant articles
	Open Meeting

	Binder1.pdf
	doc01483620230428093126
	doc01483720230428093155
	doc01483920230428093228
	doc01484020230428093242
	doc01484120230428093257


	Draft Meeting Minutes April 18 2023 SB
	Call to Order at 6:31 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen.
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Open Meeting
	Comprehensive Plan, Digital Mapping
	Center for All Seasons
	Cemetery Committee
	Acceptable Use Policy
	To keep our cybersecurity coverage through MMA, I’ve been working on an Acceptable Use policy which will need to be in place by June. Nick and I have reviewed a first draft, and this will be presented to the Selectboard for consideration at a future m...
	Warrant Articles, Public Hearing
	With the upcoming school budget vote in June, I worked on final warrant articles this week for the Board’s consideration April 18. These need to be finalized so that a public hearing can be scheduled to be in compliance with Maine statutes. Mary worke...
	Easter
	An employee asked about Easter as a paid holiday. Unfortunately, this is not included in the list of eleven paid holidays in our employee handbook. Checking with the State and other municipalities, this is not a recognized paid holiday.
	Safety Training
	Cory, Dan MacGlashing and I met with Lynn Martin to go over safety training. The Transfer Station will be applying for the SHAPE program, as well as Fire & Rescue. This is significant and shows the commitment of these departments to health and safety....
	Public Works Ad Hoc
	The Public Works Ad Hoc committee met Thursday morning to continue exploration and planning for either a contractor or contractors to pick up winter maintenance of our roads; or what a timeline and costs would be associated with creating a public work...
	Site Visits
	Cory, Chair Barbara Allen, and I did site visits of some of our facilities to get a better understanding of repairs and maintenance needed to put these into tip-top shape. The visits were interesting and very enlightening.
	ACO
	I worked with our ACO on a couple of dogs at large cases, and we’ve gotten some identifying clothing ordered for him as he continues in his duties.
	HR/Policies
	I attended HR training last week and came away with a list of policies to cross-check with what we have in place currently. As I identify missing items, I will be bringing these policies to the Selectboard for their consideration. Having said that, th...
	I believe we have a final policy to address vaccination requirements from Maine EMS for Fire & Rescue. I wrote a policy and sent that over to Dan and his crew for review. Once they made their edits, I sent out for legal review and then back to Fire & ...
	Safety Grant
	Signed off on a safety grant for Fire & Rescue through MMA – I appreciate the initiative Travis has put into applying for grant funds to help offset costs of much needed equipment.
	Brown Tail Moths
	Met with a resident about brown tail moths and what resources might be available to help mitigate these. I have been monitoring the State’s new program which would allow us to apply for grant funds to help remove these from town properties – they are ...
	Annual Evaluations
	I have been working this week on annual evaluations and will be scheduling a one-on-one with department heads before the end of the month.
	North Belgrade Fire Station Dedication
	I am awaiting confirmation and final details on the dedication of the N. Belgrade fire station, tentatively scheduled for May 6.
	Memorial Bench

	On the radar





